
Human Services/Minutes (11 February 05) - 1 - 

 
 
 

 

SOUTH OF  MARKET  PROJECT  AREA COMMITTEE  

 1035 FOLSOM STREET •  SAN FRANCISCO, CA  •  94103 

415.487.2166 Fax 415. 487.2169 • website: http://www.sompac.com 
Advisory body to the San Francisco Redevelopment Agency 

 

 
HUMAN SERVICES COMMITTEE 
Wednesday February 9, 2005 

5:00 PM 
 

Presiding Chair (5:06 PM) 
John Elberling 
 
Chair’s Report (5:06 PM) 
 
Determination of Quorum (5:06 PM) 
Present: John Elberling/GP/TODCO, Antoinetta Stadlman and Diane Burke (5:55 PM)  
Absent: Jeoflin Roh, Dr. Mahendra Dave, Charles Range/SF Outpatient Program and Jim 
Garrison  
Staff: Karen Nolan 
 
Agency: Cathy Pickering  
 
Guests: Mary McCue/KTB Management, Mary Tienken/SFRPD, Wilma Parker, Brian Egg, 
Marlo Matillano/West Bay Filipino Multi-Service Center and Victor Emeonye 
 
Approval of minutes (5:55 PM) 
Motion: “To approve Human Services Committee minutes for January 2005.” 
 
Vote: Yes: 3 No: 0 Abstain: 0 Motion Passes  
  
Agenda Order (5:07 PM) 
1,2,3,4,5,6,8,9 
 
Motion: “To approve the agenda order as is.” 
 
Vote:   Yes: 2  No: 0  Abstain: 0  Motion Passes 
  
Announcement of next Human Services Committee meeting 
Mr. Elberling announced that the next Human Services Committee would meet on March 
9th, 2005 at 5:00 PM. 
 
 
 
 



Human Services/Minutes (11 February 05) - 2 - 

Agenda Item 6. New Park Update and Discussion of Recommendation that SFRA 
Include $500,000 in FY 2005-06 SOMPAC Budget to Fund Full Construction of New 
Park by SFPRD, Including the Addition of a Full Security System by John Elberling 
(5:08 PM) 
Mr. Elberling introduced Ms. Tienken, Project Manager for the new park and asked her to 
give an update regarding plans and funding for the new park. Ms. Tienken announced that 
the SFRPD received a $1.05 million grant in November from the State Urban Parks Grant 
Fund. They are currently awaiting a response for a $900,000 soccer grant. Ms. Tienken 
explained that these funds would go towards offsetting the cost of the park and would not 
be additional funds. The total cost of the new park at this time is $3.6 million. The 
Recreation and Parks Department budget crisis has created problems with commitments 
to various projects throughout the city. 
 
Ms. Tienken informed everyone that a group in the neighborhood wants to name the new 
park. It was suggested by the Recreation and Park Department for this group to get 
community support and take this idea through a public process that would be inclusive of 
everyone. She stated that if this is not done there is no guarantee the Commission would 
approve it. Mr. Elberling suggested discussing this at the end of this agenda item, as he 
would first like to discuss the safety and funding concerns. 
 
Mr. Elberling wanted to know when the bidding process would take place for the new park 
and when the Recreation and Parks Department would know the amount of the bids. Ms. 
Tienken stated that the bids should go out in June and they should have the responses by 
July or August. Mr. Elberling referred to the safety concerns and stated that he 
understands at this time that the department has no plans for staffing the park. Ms. 
Tienken responded that the department is not hiring any staff at this time but rather they 
are laying staff off. The new park would have to operate with current staff. Mr. Elberling 
asked about the 10% reduction to the park budget. Ms. Tienken explained that there was 
a 10% reduction last year that would eliminate the maintenance office and restrooms. 
 
Mr. Elberling wanted to know if the ball field would be lit up at night. Ms. Tienkin stated 
that this is normally only done for adult league ball fields. This park would have a kid size 
regulation field where games are played during daylight hours and would be locked at 
night. Mr. Elberling inquired about the community garden. Ms. Tienken explained that the 
community garden would be large enough for 24 garden plots and a four-foot fence would 
surround the garden. Originally a six-foot fence was planned but it was determined that this 
would be too high. Mr. Matillano stated that West Bay would like to manage the garden 
and use it for the children at Bessie Carmichael and after school hours for the youth. He 
stated that we already have a community garden on Langton Street for adults with a ten-
year waiting list. 
 
Mr. Elberling referred to the safety of the park and asked Ms. McCue to go over issues 
facing the new park. Ms. McCue stated that the first issue is a lack of staff and she 
wondered how the community garden would be managed. She stated that the best 
deterrent is having activities and control at the site. A good idea would be security cameras 
and motion detector lights. These lights only go on when someone is in a particular area 
giving the impression that the premises are being watched and they are inexpensive 
because they are not on all of the time. 
 
Ms. McCue referred to the security cameras and stated that it would be a good idea to 
simultaneously record all locations within the park with 3-4 pictures showing on the monitor 



Human Services/Minutes (11 February 05) - 3 - 

at a time. The cameras are capable of zooming in close enough to read a nametag or get a 
license number off of a vehicle. If you have a public address system with the cameras it is 
even better as a deterrent. Mr. Elberling wondered if it would be feasible to have a system 
for buzzing people into the restrooms to have better security. Ms. McCue replied that this 
was possible. She pointed out that the security cameras in all locations of the park are very 
useful in finding lost children. Ms. Stadlman stated that this should not be a problem at the 
new park as it is not that big. 
 
Mr. Elberling inquired about the extent of the homeless and drug problems in the area. 
Ms. McCue stated that without cameras the homeless and drug problems have the 
potential to be very big. Mr. Elberling wondered if $100,000 was a reasonable amount for 
a good security system. Ms. McCue stated that this was a good estimate and it could 
possibly be less depending on how long you wanted to store the information. She 
explained that the cameras themselves are not that expensive it is the cost of storing the 
information for however long you decide it might be needed later for review. Ms. McCue 
stated that there are a variety of ways to set up a system. Ms. Tienken asked about where 
the cameras are placed. Ms. McCue stated that they are placed on light poles and posts 
that are placed in such a way that they do not interfere with the scenery or the activities at 
the park. There was a discussion with regard to how many security cameras would be 
needed and where they should be placed. 
 
Ms. Parker wanted to know if we were going to spend $30,000 - $40,000 for cameras, why 
not just use the money to hire a security guard for the park. Mr. Elberling explained how 
city contracts work and why this would not be feasible. Ms. Parker expressed concerns 
over spending this amount of money on cameras and having them break or run out of film 
causing someone to have to keep changing the film. Mr. Elberling stated that the systems 
are similar to TIVO and do not require film. Ms. McCue explained that the way the 
cameras are designed keeps them vandal proof and the maintenance on the system is 
very low.  
 
Mr. Egg mentioned the hours of operation and stated that he would presume that since it 
is a public park, it would be open until 10:00 PM. Ms. Tienken responded that the hours of 
operation have not been determined and reminded everyone that different facilities have 
different requirements. Ms. Carman wanted to know if the MOU between the Recreation 
and Parks Department and the School District was completed. Ms. Tienken stated that 
this is not as urgent now but there would be a contract with regard to use. Mr. Elberling 
commented that the school would be using the park on a regular basis but the school 
district is not putting any funding into the project. 
 
Ms. McCue commented that if the Recreation Department staff at Gene Friend Recreation 
Center would be required to monitor the site, it would be better to have cameras than to 
have staff running across the street all day to monitor the activity at the park. 
 
Mr. Elberling stated that he had mentioned in the past an idea to have SOMPAC take the 
lead on a community meeting for all interested groups in the community to form a “Friends 
of the Park” group. He stated that the two strong points with regard to the restrooms are 
that if there were no restrooms people would urinate everywhere and if there were 
unmonitored restrooms, they would become a shooting gallery for drug addicts. He 
wondered about a buzzer system for entry to the restrooms. 
 



Human Services/Minutes (11 February 05) - 4 - 

Mr. Matillano spoke of the naming proposal and stated that the idea for naming a park 
after Victoria Manalo Draves was first brought up when the Recreation Department 
named the Gene Friend Recreation Center. He stated that they did not name that center 
after her and he does not know why. Mr. Matillano stated that Ms. Draves won two gold 
medals in the 1948 Olympics for diving and she went to school in the neighborhood. She 
did not receive recognition at the time and we should recognize her now. When she went 
to the Olympics she could not use her Filipino name or she would not have been able to 
participate in the Olympics because she was not white. Mr. Elberling stated that this is a 
proposal to name the park after an illustrious member of the community who is still living. 
Mr. Matillano requested that the PAC make a resolution to name the park after Ms. 
Draves. 
 
Mr. Elberling stated that the point we must make to the Agency is that it is better to 
include funding in the SOMPAC budget for a good park than to put the funding into the 
housing budget. Ms. Pickering pointed out that Mr. Grisso put the SOMPAC budget 
together in December and there would be a Commission workshop with regard to the 
budget in March. Mr. Elberling stated that Mr. Grisso has not informed the PAC members 
of this budget, nor have we seen the SOMPAC budget. Ms. Pickering commented that the 
budget was a public document. 
 
Ms. Pickering wanted to clarify that the overall budget for the new park was $3.6 million. 
She wanted to know if the $1.05 million grant and the possible $900,000 grant would 
complete the funding necessary to build the park. Ms. Tienken explained that it is possible 
they might get some funds from the open space fund but this is not 100% certain. Ms. 
Pickering expressed surprise at the $400,000 for the maintenance office and restrooms. 
Ms. Parker agreed and stated that this is an obscene amount of money for restrooms. Ms. 
Stadlman pointed out that this price is due to all of the city contract requirements and we 
should have legislation to remove all of these requirements. Mr. Egg stated that the idea of 
this park in close conjunction with the other park across the street not remaining open until 
10:00 PM is ridiculous. This is a public park that must be shared by the neighborhood, not 
just the school. After the discussion Mr. Elberling made a motion and Ms. Stadlman 
seconded the motion. 
Motion: “The Human Services Committee recommends that the PAC endorse the 
Redevelopment Agency to include $500,000 in the SOMPAC budget to complete the new 
park by SFPRD including maintenance office/restrooms and the addition of a full security 
system. The Human Services Committee recommends that the PAC endorse naming the 
new park after Victoria Manalo Draves.” 
 
Vote:  Yes: 3   No: 0  Abstain: 0  Motion Passes 
 
Agenda Item 7. Discussion of 2nd Draft of Response to Neighborhood Impact Report 
by John Elberling (6:00 PM) 
Deferred until next month 
 
Public Comment (6:00 PM) 
 
Meeting Ended (6:00 PM) 

 
John Elberling 

Chair 
 


